ECOLOGICAL ADVICE SERVICE

TO: Alex Stafford
FROM: Emma England
DATE: 25 August 2022

SUBJECT: 22/00668/AS / Land South of M20, Church Lane, Aldington

The following is provided by Kent County Council’s Ecological Advice Service (EAS) for Local
Planning Authorities. It is independent, professional advice and is not a comment/position on
the application from the County Council. It is intended to advise the relevant planning officer(s)
on the potential ecological impacts of the planning application; and whether sufficient and
appropriate ecological information has been provided to assist in its determination. Any
additional information, queries or comments on this advice that the applicant or other
interested parties may have must be directed in every instance to the Planning Officer, who will
seek input from the EAS where appropriate and necessary.

Summary - Additional Information Requested

We have reviewed the ecological information submitted in support of this application and we
advise that additional information is sought from the applicant prior to determination of the
planning application:

e More detailed information regarding the design and management strategy for skylark
and lapwing to ensure that the proposed mitigations, are sufficient for the loss of
breeding territories. This may include changes to the locations and management of
hedgerows (e.g., in terms of targeted height), and where appropriate, additional land to

mitigate for the loss of the breeding territories.

Any further necessary mitigation measures will need to be submitted prior to determination
of the planning application. This is in accordance with paragraph 99 of the ODPM 06/2005
and the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF; 2021).

Paragraph 99 of the ODPM 06/2005 states: “it is essential that the presence or otherwise of
protected species and the extent that they may be affected by the proposed development, is



established before the planning permission is granted, otherwise all relevant material
considerations may not have been addressed in making the decision”.

The NPPF sets out how ‘planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the
natural and local environment by:..minimising impacts on and providing net gains for
biodiversity, including by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to
current and future pressure’.

Detailed Comments - Ecological Mitigations and Enhancements

KCC EAS has several queries regarding survey methodology, in particular for water vole.
However, as KCC EAS is broadly satisfied with the ecological mitigations and enhancements
proposed, we do not feel it is necessary to discuss this further. Despite this, further
information is requested with regards to badgers, skylark and lapwing mitigation. Further,
clarification is requested regarding the number of bird boxes provided as enhancements. It is
not clear whether 10 or 12 boxes will be provided.

If planning permission is granted, we advise that conditions securing the implementation of
the ecological mitigations and enhancements contained within the submitted East Stour Solar
Farm Environmental Statement (ES) Volume 2A - Written Statement, Chapter 10 (April,
2022), Badger Appendix (once satisfactorily updated) and any further relevant submitted
information, are attached. The relevant mitigations and enhancements should be secured
through conditions relating to:

¢ A Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) for the site;

e Detailed ecologically sensitive soft landscaping plans along with planting details,
details of enhancements such as the make/model of bat and bird boxes, and
information regarding placement (location/height/aspect); and

e The long-term, appropriate management of created/retained habitat features on-site
secured through a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan (LEMP).

We shall provide suggested wording once the additional requested information has been
provided.




Skvlark and Lapwing

It is noted that mitigations are proposed in one field for up to three pairs of skylark and two
pairs of lapwing. Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act
2006 places a general duty on all public authorities, including the local planning authorities, to
conserve and enhance biodiversity. Lapwing and skylark are listed as species of principal
importance (priority species) for conservation under Section 41 of the Act, 2006. Natural
England guidance on ‘Wild birds: advice for making planning decisions’, published 14 January
2022, states ‘you must have regard for the conservation of Section 41 species as part of your
planning decision.’

It should be noted that Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) advice contained
within ‘A management guide to birds of lowland farmland’ (Winspear and Davies, 2005)
suggests that ‘lapwings generally avoid nesting in enclosed fields of less than 5 ha or close to
field boundaries that can harbour predators, or in an area in the immediate vicinity of trees or
other features that can act as predator perches.’ The guide further indicates that ‘skylarks
generally avoid small fields. The best fields to use are ones of at least 5 ha if bounded by open
field boundaries or short hedges, or fields of at least 10 ha if bounded by tall hedges or
woodland.” The amount of usable space within the proposed mitigation area for these birds is
suggested by Kent County Council Ecological Advice Service (KCC EAS) to be around 5 ha, with
a tall existing hedgerow to the west, and proposed tall hedgerows to the north and east.

More detailed information is requested regarding the design and management strategy for
skylark and lapwing to ensure that the proposed mitigations, are sufficient for the loss of
breeding territories. This may include changes to the locations and management of
hedgerows (e.g., in terms of targeted height), and where appropriate, additional land to
mitigate for the loss of the breeding territories.

Bats

It is understood that lighting is not required during operation of the site; if this changes, then
a bat sensitive lighting strategy will be required in order to demonstrate that any potential
impacts upon bats have been effectively mitigated for. A bat sensitive lighting strategy should
consider guidance provided by the Institute of Lighting Professionals and the Bat
Conservation Trustl.

If you have any queries regarding our comments, please do not hesitate to get in touch.

Emma England
Biodiversity Officer
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